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Buffers / Riparian Zones   

Abu-Zreig, M., R.P. Rudra, M.N. Lalonde, H.R. 

Whiteley, and N.K. Kaushik. 2004. Experimental 

Investigation of Runoff Reduction and Sediment Removal 

by Vegetated Filter Strips. Hydrological Processes. 18: 

2029-2037.  

2004 Published online 12 May 2004 in 

Wiley InterScience 

(www.interscience.wiley.com). 

Broadmeadow, S. and T.R. Nisbet. 2004. The Effects of 

Riparian Forest Management on the Freshwater 

Environment: a Literature Review of Best Management 

Practice. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences, 8(3), 

286-305.  

2004  

Castelle, A.J., and A.W. Johnson. 2000. Riparian 

vegetation effectiveness. National Council for Air and 

Stream Improvement Tech. Bull. No. 799. 

2000  

Chapman, E.W. and C.A. Ribic. 2002. The Impact of 

Buffer Strips and Stream-Side Grazing on Small 

Mammals in Southwestern Wisconsin. Agriculture, 

Ecosystems and Environment. 88:49-59.  

2002  

Cockle, K.L. and J.S. Richardson. 2003. Do Riparian 

Buffer Strips Mitigate the Impacts of Clearcutting on 

Small Mammals? Biological Conservation. 113:133-140.  

2003  

Elliott, L. 2003. A New Approach to Quantifying Riparian 

Buffers in the Rural-Urban Fringe in the Lower Fraser 

Valley. 2003 Georgia Basin/Puget Sound Research 

Conference.  

2003  

GEI (GEI Consultants, Inc.). 2002. Efficacy and 

economics of riparian buffers on agricultural lands. GEI 

Consultants, Inc., Englewood, Colorado. 62 pp with 

appendices. 

2002  

Gomi, T., R. D. Moore, and Am.S. Dhakal. 2006. 

Headwater Stream Temperature Response to Clear-cut 

Harvesting with Different Riparian Treatments, Coastal 

British Columbia, Canada. Water Resources Research. 

Vol. 42, W08437. 

2006  
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King, R.S., M.E. Baker, D.F. Whigham, D.E. Weller, 

T.E. Jordan, P.R> Kazyak, and M.K. Hurd. 2005. Spatial 

Considerations for Linking Watershed Land Cover to 

Ecological Indicators in Streams. Ecological 

Applications. 15(1): 137-153. 

2005  

Lowrance, R. and J.M. Sheridan. 2005. Surface Runoff 

Water Quality in a Managed Three Zone Riparian Buffer. 

Journal of Environmental Quality. 34:1851-1859. 

2005  

Madden, S.S., Robinson, G.R., and J.G. Arnason. 2007. 

Spatial Variation in Stream Water Quality in Relation to 

Riparian Buffer Dimensions in a Rural Watershed of 

Eastern New York State. Northeastern Naturalist. 14(4): 

605-618. 

2007  

Mankin, K.R., D.M. Ngandu, C.J. Barden, S.L. 

Hutchinson, and W.A. Geyer. 2007. Grass-Shrub 

Riparian Buffer Removal of Sediment, Phosphorus, and 

Nitrogen from Simulated Runoff. Journal of the American 

Water Resources Association (JAWRA). 43(5):1108-

1116.  

2007  

May, C.W. 2000. Protection of Stream-Riparian 

Ecosystems: a Review of Best Available Science. Prepared 

for Kitsap County Natural Resources Coordinator. July 

2000. 

2000  

Mayer, P.M., S.K. Reynolds, Jr. Marshall, D. McCutchen, 

and T.J. Canfield. 2007. Meta-Analysis of Nitrogen 

Removal in Riparian Buffers. Journal of Environmental 

Quality. 36: 1172-1180. 

2007  

Mayer, P.M., S.K. Reynolds, McCutchen, and T.J. 

Canfield. 2005. Riparian Buffer Width,Vegetative Cover, 

and Nitrogen Removal Effectiveness: A Review of Current 

Science and Regulations. EPA/600/R-05/118. Cincinnati, 

Ohio, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 

2005  

Meleason, M.A. and J.M. Quinn. 2004. Influence of 

Riparian Buffer Width on Air Temperature at 

Whangapoua Forest, Coromandel Peninsula, New 

Zealand. Forest Ecology and Management 191: 365-371.  

2004 Available online at 

www.sciencedirect.com. 

Naiman, R.J., H. Decamps, and M.E. McClain. 2005. 

Riparia: Ecology, Conservation, and Management of 

Streamside Communities. Elsevier Academic Press. 

2005  
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Parkyn, S. 2004. Review of Riparian Buffer Zone 

Effectiveness. Canada Ministry of Agriculture and 

Forestry (MAF). Technical Paper No: 2004/05. 

2004  

Polyakov, V. A. Fares, and M.H. Ryder. 2005. Precision 

Riparian Buffers for the Control of Nonpoint Source 

Pollutant Loading into Surface Water: A Review. 

Environmental Review. 13: 129-144.  

2005 Published on the NRC Research 

Press Web site at http://er.nrc.ca/ 

on 16 August 2005. 

Schueler T. 2000. The architecture of urban stream 

buffers, Article 39 in The practice of watershed 

protection. Center for Watershed Protection, Ellicott City, 

Maryland. 

2000  

Schultz, R. C., T.M. Isenhart, W.W. Simpkins, and J.P. 

Colletti. 2004. Riparian Forest Buffers in Agroecosystems 

– Lessons Learned from the Bear Creek Watershed, 

Central Iowa, USA. Agroforestry Systems 61: 35-50. 

Printed in the Netherlands. 

2004  

Sridhar, V. A.L. Sansone, J. LaMarche, T. Dubin, and 

D.P. Lettenmaier. 2004. Prediction of Stream 

Temperature in Forested Watersheds. Journal of the 

American Water Resources Association (JAWRA) 40(1): 

197-213. 

2004  

Todd. 2000. Making decisions about riparian buffer 

width. International conference on riparian ecology and 

management in multi-land use watersheds, American 

Water Resources Association Conference Proceedings, 

August 28-31, 2000, Portland, Oregon. pp. 445-449. 

2000  

Vidon, P.G.F. and A.R. Hill. 2004. Landscape Controls 

on Nitrate Removal in Stream Riparian Zones. Water 

Resources Research. Vol. 40, W03201, 

doi:10.1029/2003WR002473 

2004  

Wildlife   

Bolton, S. and Shellberg, J. 2001. Ecological issues in 

floodplains and riparian corridors. University of 

Washington, Center for Streamside Studies, Seattle, WA.  

2001 http://wdfw.wa.gov/publications/

00058/wdfw00058.pdf 

City of Ellensburg Habitat Study (Adolfson and 

Associates) 

2005  

Cullinan, T. 2001. Important bird areas of Washington. 

Audubon Washington, Olympia, Washington. 

2001  
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Dobler, F.C., Eby, J. Perry, C., Richardson, S., and 

Vender Haegen, M. 1996.  Status of Washington’s Shrub 

Steppe Ecosystem: Extent, Ownership; and 

Wildlife/Vegetation Relationships 

1996  

Fellers, G.M. and P.M. Kleeman. 2007. California Red-

Legged Frog (Rana draytonii) Movement and Habitat 

Use: Implications for Conservation. Journal of 

Herpetology. 14(2): 276-286. 

2007  

Hannon, S.J. C.A. Paszkowski, S. Boutin, J. DeGroot, 

S.E. Macdonald, M. Wheatley, and B.R. Eaton. 2002. 

Abundance and Species Composition of Amphibians, 

Small Mammals, and Songbirds in Riparian Forest Buffer 

Strips of Varying Widths in the Boreal Mixedwood of 

Alberta. Canadian Journal of Forest Research.32:1784-

1800. 

2002  

Hanowski, J., N. Danz, J. Lind, and G. Niemi. 2005. 

Breeding Bird Response to Varying Amounts of Basal 

Area Retention in Riparian Buffers. Journal of Wildlife 

Management. 69(2): 689-698. 

2005  

Johnson, D.H. and T.A. O’Neil. 2001. Wildlife-Habitat 

Relationships in Oregon and Washington. Oregon State 

University Press. Corvallis, Oregon. 736 pp. 

2001  

O’Connell, M.A., J.G. Hallett, S.D. West, K.A. Kelsey, 

D.A. Manuwal, and S.F. Pearson. 2000. Effectiveness of 

riparian management zones in providing habitat for 

wildlife. Submitted to the LWAG, Timber Fish and 

Wildlife Program. Cheney, Washington. 

2000  

O'Connell, M.A., J.G. Hallett, S.D. West, K.A. Kelsey, 

D.A. Manuwal, and S.F. Pearson. 2000. Effectiveness of 

riparian management zones in providing habitat for 

wildlife; final report. Timber, Fish & Wildlife Program, 

Olympia, Washington. 

2000  

Perkins, D.W. and M.L. Hunter. 2006. Effects of Riparian 

Timber Management on Amphibians in Maine. Journal of 

Wildlife Management. 70(3): 657-670. 

2006  

Richter, K.O., and A.L. Azous. 2001. Chapter 5 

Amphibian distribution, abundance, and habitat use. in 

Azous, A.L. and R.R. Horner, editors. Wetlands and 

Urbanization: Implications for the Future. Lewis 

Publishers. New York, New York. 338pp. 

2001  

Seattle Audubon Society.  Bird Web. 2012 www.birdweb.org 
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Staicer, D. 2005. The Role of Riparian Buffers in Forest 

Bird Conservation. RES04-09. Final Report to the Nova 

Forest Alliance 2004-2005. 

2005  

Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife.  2008.  

Priority Habitats and Species List. 

2008 http://wdfw.wa.gov/publications/

00165/wdfw00165.pdf 

Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife.  Various 

dates. Species and Habitat Management 

Recommendations. 

various http://wdfw.wa.gov/conservation

/phs/mgmt_recommendations/ 

Wetlands   

Adamus, P.R., T.J. Danielson, and A. Gonyaw. 2001. 

Indicators for monitoring biological integrity of inland, 

freshwater wetlands: A survey of North American 

technical literature (1990-2000). EPA843-R-01. Fall 

2001. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of 

Water. 

2001 Available: 

http://www.epa.gov/owow/wetla

nds/ bawwg/monindicators. pdf 

Azous, A.L. and R.R. Horner, editors. 2001. Wetlands 

and urbanization, implications for the future. Lewis 

Publishers, New York. 

2001  

Booth, D.B. 2000. Forest cover, impervious-surface area, 

and the mitigation of urbanization impacts in King 

County, Washington. Prepared for King County Water 

and Land Resources Division. Seattle, Washington. 

2000  

Brettar, I. and M.G. Hoefle. 2002. Close correlation 

between the nitrate elimination rate by denitrification and 

the organic matter content in hardwood forest soils of the 

upper rhine floodplain (France). Wetlands, Vol. 22, pp. 

214-224. 

2002  

Brinson, MM. 1993. A hydrogeomorphic classification 

for wetlands. Technical Report WRP-DE-4, U.S. Army 

Engineer Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS. 

1993  

Cooke Scientific Services, Inc. 2000. Wetland and buffer 

functions semi-quantitative assessment methodology 

(SAM), Final working draft user's manual. 

2000  

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 

1979. Classification of wetlands and deepwater habitats 

of the United States. U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Publ. 

# FWS/OBS-79/31. 131p. 

1979  

Erhenfeld, J.G. 2000. Evaluating wetlands within an 

urban context. Urban Ecosystems 4:69-85. 

2000  
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Hruby, T. 2004. Washington State wetland rating system 

for eastern Washington – Revised. Washington State 

Department of Ecology Publication # 04-06-15. 

2004 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/pubs/040

6015.pdf 

McMillan, A. 2000. The Science of wetland buffers and 

its implications for the management of wetlands. Masters 

Thesis, The Evergreen State College and Washington 

Department of Ecology, Olympia, Washington. 

2000  

Mitsch, W. J. and J.G. Gosselink. 2000. Wetlands. 3rd ed. 

Van Nostrand Reinhold, New York. 

2000  

Null, W., G. Skinner, and W. Leonard. 2000. Wetland 

functions characterization tool for linear projects. 

Washington State Department of Transportation, 

Environmental Affairs Office. Olympia, Washington. 

2000  

Olivier, A. 2001. A strategy for the heritage management 

of wetlands  

2001 http://www.ramsar.org/mtg_eac_

2001d. 

Richter. 2001. Macroinvertebrate distribution, abundance, 

and habitat use in wetlands and urbanization: Implications 

for the future. Azous and Horner, editors, Lewis 

Publishers, Boca Raton, Florida. 2001. 

2001  

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  2008.  Regional 

Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland 

Delineation Manual: Arid West Region (Version 2.0).  

ERDC/EL TR-08-28 

2008 http://www.usace.army.mil/Porta

ls/2/docs/civilworks/regulatory/r

eg_supp/trel08-28.pdf 

Channel Migration Zones   

Washington State Department of Ecology and 

Washington State Department of Transportation. 2003. A 

Framework for Delineating Channel Migration Zones. 

Ecology Publication #03-06-027 

2003 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/pubs/030

6027.pdf.  

Washington State Department of Ecology. 2008. Web 

Guidance for Channel Migration Assessment under SMA.  

Ecology Publication #08-16-013.   

2008 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs

/sea/sma/cma/ 

Washington State Department of Ecology. 2011. 

Kittitas_Benton_pot_cm.gdb (Geodatabase file for 

channel migration zones in Kittitas and Benton Counties).  

2011  

Washington State Department of Ecology. 2011. Potential 

Channel Migration Reaches for Kittitas and Benton 

Counties. Email Communication from Patricia L. Olson 

on June 7, 2011. 

2011  
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WSDOT. 2011. Lower Teanaway River Reach and Site 

Assessment.pdf 

2011  

Geologic Hazard Areas   

Bennett, S.J. and A. Simon, editors. 2004. Riparian 

vegetation and fluvial geomorphology. Water Science and 

Applications 8. American Geophysical Union. 

2004  

Cazanacli, D., C. Paola, and G. Parker. 2002. 

Experimental steep, braided flow; Application to flooding 

risk on fans. Journal of Hydraulic Engineering, V. 128, 

no. 3, p. 322-330. 

2002  

Church, M. 2002. Geomorphic thresholds in riverine 

landscapes. Freshwater Biology, 47, 541-557. 

2002  

Coho, C. and S.J. Burges. 1994. Dam-break floods in low 

order mountain channels of the Pacific Northwest. Water 

Resources Series Technical Report No. 138, TFW-SH9-

91-001. Dept. of Civil Engineering, University of 

Washington, Seattle, Washington. 

2002  

Collinson, J.D. 2002. Alluvial sediments; in sedimentary 

environments processes, facies and stratigraphy, third 

edition. Edited by H.G. Reading. Blackwell Science. 

2002  

deLaChapelle, J. 2000. Late Holocene aggradational 

processes and rates for three alluvial fans, Cascade 

Foothills Washington, Washington. Unpublished M.Sc. 

thesis, Western Washington University, Bellingham, 

Washington. 

2000  

Gomi, T., R.C. Sidle, and J.S. Richardson. 2002. 

Understanding processes and downstream linkages of 

headwater systems, Bioscience, 52(10)905-916. 

2002  

Gray, D.H. and D. Barker. 2004. Root-soil mechanics and 

interactions. In Bennett, S.J. and A. Simon, editors. 2004. 

Riparian vegetation and fluvial geomorphology. Water 

Science and Applications 8. American Geophysical 

Union. 

2004  

Kondolf, G.M., H. Piegay, and D. Sear. 2003. Integrating 

geomorphic tools in ecological and management studies. 

In Kondolf, M.G. and H. Piegay, editors. 2003. Tools in 

fluvial geomorphology. John Wiley and Sons. 

2003  
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Konrad, C.P. 2003. Opportunities and constraints for 

urban stream rehabilitation, in: Montgomery, D.R., S. 

Polton, D.B. Booth, and L. Wall, editors Restoration of 

Puget Sound Rivers. University of Washington Press, 

Seattle, Washington and London, England, U.K. 

2003  

Konrad, C.P. and S.J. Burgess. 2001. Hydrologic 

mitigation using on-site residential detention. Journal of 

Water Resources Planning and Management. 

2001  

Montgomery, D.R., K.L. Schmidt, and H.M. Greenberg, 

and W.E. Dietrich. 2000. Forest clearing and regional 

landsliding, Geology, 28, 311-314. 

2000  

Montgomery, D.R., T.M. Massong, and S.C.S. Hawley. 

2003. Influence of debris flows and log jams on the 

location of pools and alluvial channekl reaches, Oregon 

Coast Range. Geologic Society of America Bulletin 115, 

78-88. 

2003  

Frequently Flooded Areas   

Bolton, S.M. and J. Shellberg. 2001. Ecological issues in 

floodplains and riparian corridors. Prepared for 

Washington State Transportation Commission and U.S. 

Department of Transportation. University of Washington 

Center for Streamside Studies. Seattle, Washington. 

2001  

Federal Emergency Management Agency. 1981. Flood 

Insurance Study, City of Cle Elum, City of South Cle 

Elum, City of Ellensburg, Town of Kittitas, and Kittitas 

County, Washington. October 15, 1981. 

1981  

Federal Emergency Management Agency. 2002. CRS 

Credit for Higher Regulatory Standards.  

2002 www.fema.gov.   

Federal Emergency Management Agency. 2002. Higher 

Floodplain Management Regulatory Standards. 2nd 

Edition. 

2002  

United States Geological Survey. 2006. Hydrogeologic 

Framework of Sedimentary Deposits in Six Structural 

Basins, Yakima River Basin, Washington. Scientific 

Investigations Report 2006–5116. Prepared in 

cooperation with the Bureau of Reclamation, Washington 

State Department of Ecology, and the Yakama Nation. 

2006  
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United States Geological Survey. 2007b. Estimates of 

Ground-Water Recharge to the Yakima River Basin 

Aquifer System, Washington, for Predevelopment and 

Current Land-Use and Land-Cover Conditions. Scientific 

Investigations Report 2007–5007. 

2007  

USGS.  2004.  Water Quality in the Yakima River Basin, 

Washington, 1999–2000: U.S. Geological Survey 

Circular 1237.  Fuhrer, G.J., Morace, J.L., Johnson, H.M., 

Rinella, J.F., Ebbert, J.C., Embrey, S.S., Waite, I.R., 

Carpenter, K.D., Wise, D.R., and Hughes, C.A.  

2004 http://pubs.usgs.gov/circ/2004/12

37/pdf/circular1237.pdf. 

Accessed 5/24/2011. 

Washington State Department of Ecology. 2010. Yakima 

River Pesticide Study Volume 1. 

2010  

Salmonids   

Haring, D. 2001. Habitat limiting factors: Yakima River 

watershed water resource inventory areas 37-39, final 

report. Washington State Conservation Commission.  

2001 http://salmon.scc.wa.gov/reports/

index.html 

James, P. W. 2002. Population status and life history 

characteristics of bull trout in the Yakima River Basin. 

Final report submitted to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, 

Upper Columbia Area Office. . 

2002 http://www.cwu.edu/~biology/fa

culty/james.html 

Knight, K. 2009. Land Use Planning for Salmon, 

Steelhead and Trout: A land use planner’s guide to 

salmonid habitat protection and recovery, Washington 

State Department of Fish & Wildlife (October 2009).   

2009 http://wdfw.wa.gov/publications/

00033/wdfw00033.pdf .  

Kondolf, N.G., Smeltzer, M., and Kimball, L. 2001. 

Freshwater gravel mining and dredging issues. White 

paper prepared for the Aquatic Habitat Guidelines 

Steering Committee and jointly published by the 

Washington State Departments of Ecology, Fish and 

Wildlife, and Transportation 

2001 http://wdfw.wa.gov/publications/

00056/wdfw00056.pdf 

McElhany, P., M.H. Ruckelshaus, M.J. Ford, T.C. 

Wainwright, and E.P. Bjorkstedt. 2000. Viable salmonid 

populations and the recovery of evolutionarily significant 

units. U.S. Dept. Commer., NOAA Tech. Memo. NMFS-

NWFSC-42,156 p. 

2000  

Norman, D.K., Cederholm, J., and Lingley, W.S. Jr. 

1998. Flood plains, salmon habitat, and sand and gravel 

mining. Washington Geology, 26 (2,3). 

1998 http://www.dnr.wa.gov/geology/

pdf/fldplain.pdf 
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Ring, T., and Watson, B. 1999. Effects of geologic and 

hydrologic factors and watershed change on aquatic 

habitat in the Yakima River Basin, Washington. In R. 

Sakrison and P. Sturtevant eds. 1999. Watershed 

Management to Protect Declining Species. Middleberg, 

VA: American Water Resources Association. TPS-99-4. 

1999  

Snyder, E. B., and Stanford, J. A. 2001. Review and 

synthesis of river ecological studies in the Yakima River, 

Washington, with emphasis on flow and salmon habitat 

interactions. Prepared for U.S. Department of the Interior, 

Bureau of Reclamation, Yakima, Washington. Flathead 

Lake Biological Station, The University of Montana, 

Polson, Montana. Open File Report 163-01. 

2001  

U.S. Department of the Interior Bureau of Reclamation, 

Pacific Northwest Region, Upper Columbia Area Office, 

Yakima, Washington. 2008. Aquatic Ecosystem 

Evaluation for the Yakima River Basin, A Component of 

Yakima River Basin Water Storage Feasibility Study, 

Washington. Technical Series No. TS–YSS–22.   

2008 http://www.usbr.gov/pn/program

s/storage_study/reports/ts-yss-

22/fullreport.pdf 

Yakima Basin Fish & Wildlife Recovery Board. 2009. 

Yakima Steelhead Recovery Plan (Extracted from the 

2005 Yakima Subbasin Salmon Recovery Plan with 

Updates) 

2009  

Yakima Sub-basin Fish and Wildlife Planning Board. 

2005. Yakima Subbasin Plan. Columbia River Basin Fish 

and Wildlife Program. Northwest Power and 

Conservation Council. Portland, Oregon. 

2005  

Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas   

Bureau of Reclamation, Washington State Department of 

Ecology, and Yakama Nation.  2009.  Estimates of 

Ground-Water Pumpage from the Yakima River Basin 

Aquifer System, Washington, 1960-2000 , J.J. Vaccaro 

and S.S. Sumioka U.S. Geological Survey Scientific 

Investigations Report 2006–5205 Version 1.2, April 2009  

2009 http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2006/520

5/ 

Cook, K.V. 2000. Guidance document for the 

establishment of critical of critical aquifer recharge area 

ordinances. Washington Department of Ecology 

Publication #97-30, Version 4.0. July 2000. 

2000  

Fair 2003. Infiltration and soil compaction. Autumn 2003 

report of the Association of Environmental Commissions.  

2003 http://www.anjec.org/pdfs/water-

soilcompaction.pdf 
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Ground Water Protection Council 2004. Washington 

ground water conditions.  

2004 http://www.gwpc.org/gwreport/

Acrobat/Washington.pdf 

United States Geological Survey (USGS), 2007. Yakima 

River Basin Ground-Water Investigation: An Update. 

(Specifically slide 64.) Presentation at the Yakima 

Arboretum on February 28.  

2007 http://wa.water.usgs.gov/projects

/yakimagw/data/YakimaPPT228

07.pdf. 

USGS.  2009a.  Hydrogeologic framework of the Yakima 

River basin aquifer system, Washington, Vaccaro, J.J., 

Jones, M.A., Ely, D.M., Keys, M.E., Olsen, T.D., Welch, 

W.B., and Cox, S.E. (U.S. Geological Survey Scientific 

Investigations Report 2009–5152: 2009).   

2009 http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2009/515

2/ 

USGS. 2007a. Estimates of Ground-Water Recharge to 

the Yakima River Basin Aquifer System, Washington, for 

Predevelopment and Current Land-Use and Land-Cover 

Conditions 

2007  

USGS. 2010.  Quality of source water from public-supply 

wells in the United States, 1993–2007: U.S. Geological 

Survey Scientific Investigations Report 2010-5024, 

Toccalino, P.L., Norman, J.E., and Hitt, K.J., 2010 & 

Appendixes.   

2010 http://pubs.usgs.gov/sir/2010/502

4/ 

Wetland Mitigation   

Ecology (Washington Department of Ecology). 2000. 

Washington State wetland mitigation evaluation study – 

Phase 1: Compliance, Publication #00-06-016. 

2000  

Ecology (Washington Department of Ecology). 2002. 

Washington State wetland mitigation evaluation study – 

Phase 2: Evaluating success, Publication #02-06-009. 

2002  

Granger, T., T. Hruby, A. McMillan, D. Peters, J. Rubey, 

D. Sheldon, S. Stanley, E. Stockdale. April 2005. 

Wetlands in Washington State - Volume 2: Guidance for 

Protecting and Managing Wetlands. Washington State 

Department of Ecology. Publication #05-06-008. 

Olympia, WA. 

2005 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs

/sea/wetlands/bas/volume2final.h

tml 

Hruby, T., K. Harper, and S. Stanley (2010). Selecting 

Wetland Mitigation Sites Using a Watershed Approach 

(Eastern Washington). Washington State Department of 

Ecology Publication #10-06-007. 

2010 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/pubs/100

6007.pdf 
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Mitsch, W.J., L. Zhang, K.C. Stefanik, A.M. Nahlik, C.J. 

Anderson, B. Bernal, M. Hernandez, and K. Song.  2012.  

Creating Wetlands: Primary Succession, Water Quality 

Changes, and Self-Design over 15 Years.  BioScience 

62(3): 237-250. 

2012  

NRC (National Research Council). 2001. Compensating 

for wetland losses under the Clean Water Act. 

Washington DC; National Academy Press. 

2001  

Sheldon, D., T. Hruby, P. Johnson, K. Harper, A. 

McMillan, T. Granger, S. Stanley, and E. Stockdale. 

March 2005. Wetlands in Washington State - Volume 1: 

A Synthesis of the Science. Washington State Department 

of Ecology. Publication #05-06-006. Olympia, WA. 

2005 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs

/sea/wetlands/bas/volume1final.h

tml 

Washington State Department of Ecology, U.S. Army 

Corps of Engineers Seattle District, and U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency Region 10. March 

2006. Wetland Mitigation in Washington State – Part 1: 

Agency Policies and Guidance (Version 1). Washington 

State Department of Ecology Publication #06-06-011a. 

Olympia, WA. 

2006 http://www.ecy.wa.gov/pubs/060

6011a.pdf 

Washington State Department of Ecology, U.S. Army 
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